














































Minutes: August 2020  1 
 

BURRELL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AGENDA MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 11, 2020 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
 
The Burrell School District Board of Directors Agenda Meeting was streamed live on 
YouTube and called to order at 7:07 PM by President Shank. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Ms. Shank asked all present to participate in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The following responded to Roll Call:  Dr. Rachel Linderman, Mrs. Genia Koziarski, Mr. 
Tom Deiseroth, Mrs. Gretchen Beveridge, Mrs. LeeAnn S. Guido, Mrs. Pam Key, Mr. Rick 
Kaczor, Mr. Christopher S. Wojcik and Ms. Tricia Shank.  Also in attendance were:  Dr. 
Shannon L. Wagner, Superintendent, Dr. Gregory Egnor, Director of Student Services, and 
Mrs. Jennifer S. Callahan, Business Administrator/Board Secretary. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
AUGUST 4, 2020 – 6:00 PM – PERSONNEL AGENDA  
AUGUST 11, 2020 – IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING MEETING – PERSONNEL 
AGENDA  
AUGUST 18, 2020 – 7:00 PM – PERSONNEL AGENDA 
 
Ms. Shank announced the Board’s Executive Sessions.  
 
The Board reviewed items scheduled for the regular meeting to be held on August 18, 2020. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – AGENDA ONLY 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
 
REPORTS OF ADMINISTRATION AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
SUPERINTENDENT – DR. WAGNER: 
 
STUDENT/STAFF RECOGNITION 



Minutes: August 2020  2 
 

 
APPROVAL OF POLICY 151 – THERAPY DOGS IN SCHOOLS 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that the first reading of Policy 151-Therapy Dogs in School was reviewed 
in June.  She explained Mrs. Balich has a therapy dog currently going through training and 
will start to visit this year to get acclimated.  She added she will ask the Board to approve the 
policy next week. 
 
 
PERMISSION TO PLACE ONE BUSINESS, COMPUTERS, INFORMATION, & 
TECHNOLOGY STUDENT TEACHER FROM INDIANA UNIVERSITY OF 
PENNSYLVANIA AT BURRELL HIGH SCHOOL FOR THE FALL SEMESTER 2020 
 
Dr. Wagner stated the District already has an affiliation agreement in place with IUP and IUP 
is requesting student teacher placement for fall semester 2020. 
 
 
PERMISSION FOR THE FOLLOWING STUDENT TEACHER PLACEMENTS 
FROM ST. VINCENT COLLEGE:  ENGLISH 7-12: HUSTON MIDDLE SCHOOL – 
SPRING SEMESTER 2021; SOCIAL STUDIES 7-12: HUSTON MIDDLE SCHOOL – 
SPRING SEMESTER 2021; BIOLOGY 7-12: BURRELL HIGH SCHOOL – SPRING 
SEMESTER 2021 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that St. Vincent College will be submitting an affiliation agreement to add 
to next week’s agenda and then we will be asking to approve student teacher placements.  Dr. 
Wagner added we are happy to have student teachers as additional help during this school 
year. 
 
Mr. Kaczor asked if a student teacher can sub if the teacher is absent. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated student teachers can sub 20 days and we will add them as substitute 
teachers on the personnel log at a later date. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CATAPULT 
LEARNING FOR NON-PUBLIC TITLE I SERVICES FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL 
YEAR 
 
Dr. Wagner explained the agreement and that the District is required to provide Title I 
services for MQA qualifying students.  She added that the district contracts with Catapult 
Learning to provide the services at a total cost of $3,573. 
 
 
PERMISSION TO ENROLL ONE NONRESIDENT STUDENT TUITION-FREE 
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2020, PENDING CONTRACTED PURCHASE OF HOME 
 



Minutes: August 2020  3 
 

Dr. Wagner stated as per our Board policy, she will ask for approval since the family is 
purchasing a house in the district.  She indicated they are expected to be district residents by 
the end of September. 
 
Mr. Kaczor asked what if the District goes into the red and the family is not able to close on 
house, would we allow them continue tuition free? 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that issue would be addressed if needed and explained that the Board can 
choose to grant an extension or could say no and require tuition be paid. 
 
 
DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES – DR. EGNOR: 
 
APPROVAL OF ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT WITH ESS SUPPORT SERVICES, 
LLC FOR EDUCATIONAL STAFFING SERVICES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2020 
 
Dr. Egnor stated this is a service used to provide Personal Care Assistants (PCA) and this 
agreement updates the pay rate at a slight increase, which is the first increase in over 10 years.  
Dr. Egnor also reported that last year we increased the budget to allow for an increased 
number of PCA.  He added that securing aides is a concern. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH ARIN 
INTERMEDIATE UNIT FOR SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGIST SERVICES FOR 2020-
2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Dr. Egnor stated we currently have an agreement with AIU for school psychologist services, 
and this MOA provides an additional day so it will be four days of service for this year only.  
He stated we can use IDEA funds for the cost.  He indicated he believes we will have 
additional needs since we are behind in evaluations from last year plus we are expecting 
additional evaluations this year. 
 
Mrs. Guido asked if we use school psychologists for more than testing. 
 
Dr. Egnor replied yes, as time permits; the school psychologist attends ESS meetings and 
provides other functions in addition to evaluations. 
 
 
RATIFICATION OF SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH THE CHILDREN’S 
INSTITUTE FOR EXTENDED SCHOOL YEAR (ESY) FOR SUMMER 2020 
 
Dr. Egnor stated that because of the issues we dealt with in the spring and summer, Children’s 
Institute sent this agreement after June’s board meeting, so it requires ratification at this time. 
 
Mrs. Beveridge asked how many students were in ESY this summer. 
 



Minutes: August 2020  4 
 

Dr. Egnor reported the following:  
- 12 ESY district students but we typically have about 15-18 
- Teachers did remote ESY this year 
- Guaranteed one-one instruction 
- Provided socialization opportunities each week 
- Program was successful 

 
 
APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH FAMILY COUNSELING CENTER OF 
ARMSTRONG COUNTY FOR STUDENT SERVICES 
 
Dr. Egnor stated this agreement outlines the partial adolescent program in Leechburg and is 
done yearly as needed to provide services for students. 
 
 
PERSONNEL – MS. SHANK 
 
NORTHERN WESTMORELAND CAREER & TECHNOLOGY CENTER REPORT – 
MR. WOJCIK/DR. LINDERMAN 
 
Dr. Linderman reported the following: 

- Meeting later this month 
- Had orientation and will start school in the fall 
- NWCTC health and safety plan is laid out and just needs approval 
- CTC needs to be hands on so students will attend school 

 
Mrs. Guido asked if the intention is for students to attend 5 days per week.  
 
Dr. Linderman replied yes on the schools’ normal schedule and class starts August 26, 2020. 
 
Ms. Shank asked if the home district is virtual, will they bus students to the school. 
 
Dr. Linderman replied it is up to sending school. 
 
Mrs. Guido asked if we have students who chose option B or C but want to go to CTC. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied we may have some and the survey is due by 4:00 PM this Thursday.  She 
stated we will work on the transportation portion once we have final information. 
 
 
WESTMORELAND INTERMEDIATE UNIT REPORT – MRS. BEVERIDGE 
 
Mrs. Beveridge reported there was not a quorum at the Tuesday meeting so a meeting is to be 
held this Thursday to meet and approve the health and safety plan which has several sections. 
 
 



Minutes: August 2020  5 
 

 
PSBA LIAISON REPORT – MRS. KEY 
 
BUSINESS – MRS. CALLAHAN: 
 
APPROVAL OF BUS ROUTES FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated that School Code requires the Board to approve the bus routes annually.  
She indicated that Mr. Croushore and Dr. Wagner are working on bus routes and they should 
be finalized later this week.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF BUS DRIVERS FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated that School Code requires the Board to approve the bus drivers annually.  
The final list will be provided later this week. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
REQUESTS FOR USE OF BUILDINGS 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated there are no building requests to approve at this time. 
 
Dr. Wagner reported that she met with YMCA, Mr. D’Angelo, Ms. Lenart and Mr. Ploskunak 
regarding YMCA before/after school daycare.  She stated YMCA will be submitting a 
building request to use a classroom and the cafeteria at Bon Air School.  She indicated that 
they will only use the two spaces and will limit the number of students.  They are following 
Burrell School District guidelines and the guidelines from the YMCA organization. 
 
Mrs. Guido asked if YMCA will sanitize the classroom before school. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated it is not a classroom used for our students so it will be cleaned nightly as 
usual.  They will use the cafeteria this year rather than the gym since we are using the gym as 
a cafeteria. 
 
 
PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
 
  



Minutes: August 2020  6 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Dr. Linderman made a motion, seconded by Mr. Kaczor, that the Board adjourn the meeting at  
7:25 PM. 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor.   Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
             
      Jennifer S. Callahan 

Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
 
JSC/lew 



Minutes: August 2020  1 
 

BURRELL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

AUGUST 18, 2020 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Burrell School District Board of Directors Board Meeting was streamed live on YouTube 
and called to order at 7:32 PM by Vice President Kaczor. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mr. Kaczor asked all present to participate in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The following responded to Roll Call:  Dr. Rachel Linderman, Mrs. Genia Koziarski, Mrs. 
Gretchen Beveridge, Mrs. LeeAnn S. Guido, Mrs. Pam Key, Mr. Christopher S. Wojcik, Mr. 
Tom Deiseroth, and Mr. Rick Kaczor.  The following member was absent:  Ms. Tricia Shank.  
Also in attendance were:  Dr. Shannon L. Wagner, Superintendent, Dr. Gregory Egnor, Director 
of Student Services, Mrs. Jennifer S. Callahan, Business Administrator/Board Secretary, and Mr. 
Lee Price, Solicitor. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
AUGUST 4, 2020 – 6:00 PM – PERSONNEL AGENDA  
AUGUST 11, 2020 –IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING MEETING – PERSONNEL AGENDA  
AUGUST 18, 2020 – 7:00 PM – PERSONNEL AGENDA 
 
Mr. Kaczor announced the Board’s Executive Sessions.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Agenda Meeting – June 16, 2020 
Regular Meeting – June 23, 2020 
Special Meeting – August 4, 2020 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Mr. Wojcik 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT – JUNE/JULY 2020 (Attachment 8-1) 
FOOD SERVICE FUND REPORT – JUNE/JULY 2020 (Attachment 8-2) 
STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND REPORTS – JUNE/JULY 2020 (Attachment 8-3) 
NURSE’S REPORT – June 2020 (Attachment 8-4)  



Minutes: August 2020  2 
 

 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Koziarski 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC – AGENDA ONLY 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
 
REPORTS OF ADMINISTRATION AND STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
SUPERINTENDENT – DR. WAGNER: 
 
STUDENT/STAFF RECOGNITION 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that we are preparing for opening the schools and staff has stepped up to the 
plate and doing their very best to prepare for students in the next few weeks. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF POLICY 151 – THERAPY DOGS IN SCHOOLS (Attachment 8-5) 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Guido   Seconded by:  Mrs. Koziarski 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
PERMISSION TO PLACE ONE BUSINESS, COMPUTERS, INFORMATION, & 
TECHNOLOGY STUDENT TEACHER FROM INDIANA UNIVERSITY OF 
PENNSYLVANIA AT BURRELL HIGH SCHOOL FOR THE FALL SEMESTER 2020  
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Beveridge   Seconded by:  Mrs. Guido 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
PERMISSION FOR THE FOLLOWING STUDENT TEACHER PLACEMENTS FROM 
ST. VINCENT COLLEGE:  ENGLISH 7-12: HUSTON MIDDLE SCHOOL – SPRING 
SEMESTER 2021; SOCIAL STUDIES 7-12: HUSTON MIDDLE SCHOOL – SPRING 
SEMESTER 2021; BIOLOGY 7-12: BURRELL HIGH SCHOOL – SPRING SEMESTER 
2021 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Mrs. Beveridge 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 



Minutes: August 2020  3 
 

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CATAPULT 
LEARNING FOR NON-PUBLIC TITLE I SERVICES FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR  
 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Guido 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
PERMISSION TO ENROLL ONE NONRESIDENT STUDENT TUITION-FREE 
THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2020, PENDING CONTRACTED PURCHASE OF HOME 
 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Guido 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AFFILIATION AGREEMENT WITH SAINT VINCENT COLLEGE 
 
Dr. Wagner stated this agreement is to place student teachers in our buildings. 
 
Motion by:  Mr. Wojcik   Seconded by:  Mr. Deiseroth 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF REVISION TO 2020-2021 SCHOOL CALENDAR (Attachment 8-6) 
 
Dr. Wagner explained she is asking the Board to consider pushing the student start date back to 
September 8, 2020 for the following reasons: 

- Some technology not arriving prior to start of school year 
- Additional time to communicate with families regarding families allowing students to 

bring technology to school 
- Teachers working through technology and preparation would appreciate a few more days 
- Moving furniture from classrooms to make more room 
- Additional time would help resolve some of the issues 
- Many other districts have pushed their start date back, so it makes sense to start the 

school year with other districts 
- Administration is requesting revising the calendar to better prepare for students 

 
Dr. Wagner explained changes in calendar: 

- Moved October 12, 2020 in-service to September 1 
- Moved January 18, 2021 teacher clerical day to September 2 
- Early dismissals: 4 remaining in the schedule would equal 8 hours, so teachers will work 

September 3, 2020  
  



Minutes: August 2020  4 
 

- Provides three additional work days for teachers to prepare 
- Removed March 31, 2021 as day off school 
- Student’s last day will be June 10, 2021 

 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if this gives enough time to prepare for students. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied it gives additional time. 
 
Mr. Kaczor asked about the limited storage space and should a trailer be obtained. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied we are seeking additional areas within our buildings at this time. 
  
Dr. Wagner stated several options are being explored at this time as we work through the issues, 
and additional time would appreciated. 
 
Mr. Wojcik asked if the benefit of moving the school year start date back outweighs the other 
dates. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied yes. 
 
Mr. Kaczor stated if we are just taking furniture out of classrooms for social distancing spacing 
reasons, why not leave it in and mark every other seat as not usable. 
 
Dr. Wagner explained it is cabinets, tables, etc. that are in the way of spacing desks further apart. 
 
Mr. Kaczor suggested talking with U-Haul about them donating space. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied that Mr. Ploskunak is exploring all options. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated teachers, custodians and the technology department would all appreciate the 
additional time. 
 
Dr. Wagner reported about 50% of families indicate they have technology, but we need to verify 
that they are willing to send it to school. 
 
Mr. Wojcik asked if a smart phone is acceptable technology. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that is not the recommended technology, although older students are better 
with using phones as technology. 
 
Mr. Kaczor asked if the District has enough bandwidth to support the technology. 
 
Dr. Wagner explained that a few years ago we upgraded our backbone with the intention of 
going one-one and she believes we have the backbone and bandwidth to support our needs. 
 
General discussion ensued regarding shortage of technology. 



Minutes: August 2020  5 
 

Mrs. Callahan summarize the technology shortage as follows 
- District placed orders for Chromebooks in June as soon as the details about the CARES 

funding and grant info were released with guidelines and allocations 
- Mid-July, the district was made aware of problems obtaining the technology in a timely 

manner due to nationwide shortage due to many schools and businesses securing devices 
- District quickly pursued another opportunity that appeared would help secure technology 

through purchasing group; requested approval of the purchasing agreement August 4 
- We were recently informed that many of the Chromebooks will not be received before 

the start of school and some not for a few months 
- Continue to monitor the status and do the best we can to prepare in the current situation 

 
Mrs. Guido stated that she believes teachers are doing a wonderful job, and if they feel that 
additional days would be helpful, then we should definitely revise the calendar. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if it will be enough time. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied the union has asked for more time and their request is to start after Labor 
Day.  They are being asked to do something they have never done before, so they would 
appreciate it.  They are learning to use the Chromebooks, learning to integrate it with other 
classroom equipment and planning for instruction.  Teachers will be better prepared, will feel 
more comfortable and will appreciate the additional time. 
 
Dr. Wagner asked High School principals to comment.   
 
Mrs. Roland indicated that the additional time will be very useful as teachers are working 
through and trying things to make it work for instruction.  It is time consuming but they are 
working together to find minor adjustments to make that will help make the technology use and 
online instruction successful. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked what it looks like and will a teacher display the whiteboard while teaching 
for those at home? 
 
Dr. Wagner replied it will depend on the teacher’s style.  They can share the screen with students 
at home which will be what is on promethean board for students in school.  She added another 
option might be to put all students in Google Meet so both in-school and at-home students would 
be doing it that way.  Dr. Wagner added that some teachers may co-teach so that one can cover 
remote while another does the in person. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski stated she believes this is fantastic. 
 
Dr. Wagner commented that teachers are mostly experienced with teaching face to face, so the 
additional time will be appreciated for them to continue working on their teaching plan. 
 
Dr. Linderman stated that it makes sense and only adds a few days at the end of the school year. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if there has been dialogue with teachers on their comfort level. 



Minutes: August 2020  6 
 

 
General discussion ensued regarding teaching comfort level which varies. 
 
Dr. Wagner explained that building leaders and principals are talking with their teachers and 
working through some of the issues. 
 
Dr. Linderman stated that parents might be a little upset with the calendar change, but if teachers 
need it and it is going to help, it is important to make the preparations. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated it is also a technology issue and building facilities issue.  She understands it 
may not be pleasing to all parents, but it is for a better start to the school year. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski stated if it benefits the teachers as well, she fully supports the calendar revision. 
 
Mrs. Guido stated that it sets the stage that we are looking to provide a quality education, not just 
put in the time.  She added it is better if teachers feel a little more prepared and the technology is 
as best prepared as possible and helps to not set us up for failure. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski stated if it is communicated clearly, the community will hopefully understand. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated if the calendar revision passes tonight, we will email families, post it on the 
website, post to Twitter and send through a school messenger call tomorrow. 
 
Mr. Kaczor stated in normal circumstances, he would not support the change in calendar, but at 
this time he believes it makes sense. 
 
Dr. Linderman commented that it puts our students in line with other students start/end time. 
 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Guido 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
Dr. Wagner thanked Board members. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski thanked Dr. Wagner for the update. 
 
Dr. Wagner reported that 1,700 families have responded at this point and there are still a few to 
contact for information/choices but most are choosing to physically send students to school. 
 
 
DIRECTOR OF STUDENT SERVICES – DR. EGNOR: 
 
APPROVAL OF ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT WITH ESS SUPPORT SERVICES, 
LLC FOR EDUCATIONAL STAFFING SERVICES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2020  
(Attachment 8-7) 
 



Minutes: August 2020  7 
 

Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Mrs. Guido 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH ARIN INTERMEDIATE 
UNIT FOR SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGIST SERVICES FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
(Attachment 8-8) 
 
Motion by:  Mr. Deiseroth   Seconded by:  Mr. Wojcik 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
RATIFICATION OF SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH THE CHILDREN’S INSTITUTE 
FOR EXTENDED SCHOOL YEAR (ESY) FOR SUMMER 2020 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Mrs. Beveridge 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH FAMILY COUNSELING CENTER OF 
ARMSTRONG COUNTY FOR STUDENT SERVICES (Attachment 8-9) 
 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Koziarski 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
PERSONNEL – MS. SHANK  (Attachment 8-10) 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Dr. Linderman 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor.   Motion carried. 
 
 
NORTHERN WESTMORELAND CAREER & TECHNOLOGY CENTER REPORT –
MR. WOJCIK/DR. LINDERMAN 
 
Dr. Linderman reported a virtual meeting will be held this Thursday. 
 
WESTMORELAND INTERMEDIATE UNIT REPORT – MRS. BEVERIDGE 
 
Members received a summary of the June 23 and August 13, 2020 minutes in their packets.   
Mrs. Beveridge reported the following: 



Minutes: August 2020  8 
 

- Put in place the 5-part Health and Safety Plan for 2020-2021 
- Bus contract through First Student 
- Security services for Clairview School 
- Pedro Rivera announced his resignation as PA Secretary of Education 
- Noe Ortega will replace Mr. Rivera 
- Safe to Say Program – system for students and parents to report various matters 

o During pandemic suicidal and self-harming tips increased 
o Important to note as we move forward 

- IT department working long hard hours as they all are – thank you 
- No eAcademy numbers at this time 

 
Mrs. Beverage continued with the following comments relating to our district and the upcoming 
school year: 

- Thank you to administration, faculty, and staff for a very hard, long summer working to 
get our students through a school year.  We have no idea what is going to happen, but 
faculty is working hard.   

- We had a tough decision to make and feels we had to make a decision for students that 
need help.  

- Understand it puts administration and staff in difficult position and appreciates the hard 
work. 

- Believes the decision and plan was made based mainly on what kids need 
 
 
PSBA LIAISON REPORT – MRS. KEY 
 
Mrs. Key reported PSBA is asking school leaders to ask Governor Wolf to provide temporary 
liability protection for schools.  With precautions taken, there is no way to prevent all exposure 
to COVID. 
 
 
BUSINESS – MRS. CALLAHAN: 
 
APPROVAL OF BUS ROUTES FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated that bus routes and bus drivers must be Board approved annually per school 
code.  She indicated that Mr. Croushore has provided the bus routes for 2020-2021. 
 
Motion by:  Mr. Kaczor   Seconded by:  Mr. Wojcik 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF BUS DRIVERS FOR 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated that WL Roenigk, bus contractor, has provided the list of bus drivers.  
 



Minutes: August 2020  9 
 

Motion by:  Mr. Deiseroth   Seconded by:  Dr. Linderman 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Wojcik asked if the District receives drivers’ clearances. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied yes. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if the District added more buses due to social distancing.  
 
Dr. Wagner replied face to face for busing is approximately 70% capacity; they expect two per 
seat and require masks. 
 
Dr. Linderman asked if seats are assigned. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied yes.  She added that she believes many of parents will drive their kids and we 
will be looking closer at that part of the survey next. 
 
General discussion ensued regarding transportation and plan guidelines. 
 
Dr. Linderman asked if parking issues are foreseen. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated vehicles are still required to be registered and get a parking pass.  She 
indicated that spaces may have to be limited.   
 
High School principals added that they believe they are able to handle parking issues because we 
typically have extra spaces. 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR USE OF BUILDINGS (Attachment 8-11) 
 
Ms. Callahan stated that YMCA Childcare at Bon Air School has been posted as a building 
request since last week. 
 
Motion by:  Mrs. Koziarski   Seconded by:  Mrs. Beveridge 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
  



Minutes: August 2020  10 
 

PAYMENT OF BILLS  (Attachment 8-12) 
 
Motion by:  Dr. Linderman   Seconded by:  Mrs. Koziarski 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor   Motion carried. 
 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
JSC read the following public comments: 

- John Kido, 2908 Leechburg Road 
o Link is not present as advertised prior to 7:30 meeting start time 

- JSC responded that link was available and working prior to meeting starting as tested by 
admin present. 

 
- Mason Heberling, 208 McIntyre Lane 

o Genia has an excellent point that allowing some teachers to focus on virtual 
learning while others focus on in person learning would make teachers feel more 
comfortable.  Why is this approach not allowed for K-5 teachers? 

o Dr. Wagner responded that it is not the model presented, we want all teachers to 
learn the technology, it is not good to have one teacher virtually and different 
teacher face to face.  Want students to have same teacher/experience.  Also, as 
explained earlier, it puts more students in classrooms so less social distance space. 

OTHER REMARKS 
 
Dr. Linderman asked if students that drive to school and attend CTC, can they drive straight 
there. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied yes, they will go straight there. 
 
Mrs. Key asked if there will still be a bus to CTC. 
 
Dr. Linderman replied there was a CTC survey and yes, there will still be a bus, but kids are 
allowed to drive this year. 
 
Mrs. Beveridge asked for a High School stadium renovation project status. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied September 23, 2020 is the completion date. 
 
Mr. Kaczor if the project is behind schedule. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied yes, but this is the date they have indicated for a while now.  Will be able to 
have games from that date on. 
 
 



Minutes: August 2020  11 
 

 
Mrs. Koziarski asked about the idea of one teacher teaching all remote students and one in 
person and if that is available at Stewart. 
 
Dr. Wagner explained that pulling teachers to do remote learning only would increase the class 
sizes for kids face to face in school.  She stated she thinks it is better for younger students to 
have the teacher that they will have when they return to in school instruction.  She also believes 
it is good for all teachers to learn the environment and for the PLC to continue their good work 
together. 
 
Mr. Kaczor stated he also sees the benefit if a substitute is there to just mange the kids while 
another teacher can then pick up and provide instruction. 
 
General discussion ensued regarding instruction. 
  
Dr. Linderman asked if earbuds are provided to students. 
 
Dr. Wagner replied no, but we are asking students to provide them as part of school supplies.  
She stated that they will be provided for teachers. 
 
Dr. Wagner asked Ms. Speer, Technology Director, to explain. 
 
Ms. Speer explained that earbuds are basically serving as a microphone for students at home to 
hear the teacher clearly.  Teachers will be muting/unmuting students at home.   
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if our phones could tie to the sound. 
 
Ms. Speer replied that teacher phones are not speaker phones. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked if is there something that can be added. 
 
Mrs. Callahan stated our phone system is very old and would probably not support the 
technology.  It is something that was on our long-term list for upgrades, but was not a priority 
since the system has worked for our needs to this point. 
 
General discussion regarding substitute teachers. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated we will have a substitute teacher training. 
 
Mrs. Key asked about eAcademy and kindergarten. 
 
Dr. Egnor explained that eAcademy uses a vendor/program which is the vendor that some of the 
cyber charter schools use and that it is robust.  K-5 specializes in software that is more engaging 
toward younger students. 
 



Minutes: August 2020  12 
 

Mrs. Key stated that a parent asked about mask breaks and was told mask breaks are during 
lunch and recess, but no promises at any other time.  Mrs. Key questioned did we not talk about 
permitting mask breaks when students are properly separated? 
 
Dr. Wagner stated that guidelines changed yesterday. 
 
Dr. Egnor stated he believes that across classrooms, there will be scheduled mask breaks. 
 
Mr. Price, Solicitor, stated that PDE guidance now says we must wear masks except for mask 
breaks which can be no longer than 10 minutes. 
 
Dr. Wagner stated we originally discussed students could remove masks when social distanced in 
class.  She added that PDE indicated that a face shield is an acceptable alternative. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski asked about students not following mask guidelines. 
 
Dr. Wagner responded that we will ask them to correct it and if it becomes an issue, or they will 
be asked to change to remote learning. 
 
Mrs. Key stated that she fully applauds teachers, custodians, and cafeteria workers because they 
are now front-line workers; they are cautious and notes that how they feel is how they feel.  She 
commented that any fear or anxiety they have is real to them so it is important to validate those 
feelings.  Even the parents who may be opting to send students, they are still fearful.  The 
unknown is there, so it is ok to feel afraid or however else anyone feels.  Mrs. Key stated she 
believes we should accept that, validate it and support them.  The staff has a very difficult task to 
come in here every day.  She added that she supports them. 
 
Mrs. Koziarski stated she agrees with Mrs. Key.  Coming from a household that had COVID, it 
has given her a different perspective.  She appreciates that we are providing several options and 
that we are sympathetic to everyone’s needs and fears. 
 
Mrs. Key stated we have talked about the mental health of students, but feels it is also important 
to talk about mental health of teachers, staff and parents. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mrs. Beveridge made a motion, seconded by Dr. Linderman, that the Board adjourn the meeting 
at 8:45 PM. 
 
Roll Call:  All in Favor.   Motion carried. 
 
 

             
      Jennifer S. Callahan 

 Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
JSC/lew 


